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AMENDMENT NUMBER THREE

RFP UB-17-W-24
Marketing, Web and Advertising for the University of Baltimore.

THE RFP IS AMENDED IN THE FOLLOWING PARTICULARS ONLY:

continued on next page…….
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	NAME AND ADDRESS OF OFFEROR

FEI Number: ______________
	SIGNATURE OF PERSON AUTHORIZED TO SIGN QUOTATION


	DATE OF QUOTATION

	
	SIGNER’S NAME AND TITLE


	TELEPHONE No.


The following questions were asked:

1) QUESTION:
Within the overall MBE goal of 11%, are there sub-goals that must be met for specific MBE segments (women-owned, African American-owned, etc.)? 

ANSWER:

No, there are no sub-goals.
2) QUESTION:
What percentage of the $800,000-$1m marketing budget has been spent traditionally on media costs?
ANSWER:

This year, we’ve dedicated roughly 80% of our budget to media buys. Regardless of what has been done in the past, though, we’d like labor costs to represent no more than 25%, and the remainder can be dedicated to media buying.

3) QUESTION:
Section 4.3.4.1 of the response requires credentials/bios/resumes of key individuals assigned to the account, and Section 4.3.6 is to contain resumes for all key support staff – are these the same requests, and should this information be repeated in both sections?  Or should the individuals named in 4.3.4.1 differ in any way from those named in 4.3.6?  Also, the requirement of a Work Plan specifies it should contain project personnel, including job titles and a brief bio.  Should these be just the key individuals whose resumes are featured in 4.3.4.1 and 4.3.6?
ANSWER:  
Sections 4.3.4.1 and 4.3.6 refer to bios of the same key individuals assigned to the account, and these bios need to be provided only once within the technical volume of the proposal. The work plan should specify the names of any key individuals and can simply cross-reference bios provided elsewhere in the proposal. 

4) QUESTION:         Can you clarify how the references required for section 4.3.4.4 differ from the references required for 4.3.5?  Are those required for 4.3.4.4 just higher education references, and those required for 4.3.5 NON-higher education references?  How many references in total are required, given both sections?

ANSWER:    Those sections of the RFP say, 

4.3.4.4. The firm’s experience as demonstrated by positive references.  Experience with higher education clients—particularly those in the general region—is desirable; similar or corollary experience is also acceptable.  Regarding higher education clients, whether public or private, please list:

· all that the firm currently represents

· all that the firm has worked with in the past five years

· all University System of Maryland-based institutions with which the firm has worked in the past 10 years.

4.3.5.     REFERENCES:  

Contractors must provide at least three references as specified in Section 2.12. of this RFP.  Cited references must be able to confirm, without reservation, the contractor's ability to perform as mandated in this solicitation.  The contractor must use these references to support its proposal's viability.

The University reserves the right to take any or all of the following actions: to reject a proposal based on an unsatisfactory reference, to contact any person or persons associated with the referenced site, to request additional references or contact any known organization using the services supplied by the contractor or the contractor's subcontractors, to contact independent consulting firms for additional information about the contractor or the contractor's subcontractors, and to have members of the Evaluation Committee visit any or all of the reference sites for demonstrations.

Those requirements are hereby combined into the following, which replaces 4.3.5.

4.3.5.   REFERENCES:          The firm’s experience as demonstrated by positive references.  Experience with higher education clients—particularly those in the general region—is desirable; similar or corollary experience is also acceptable.  Contractors must provide at least three references.  

Regarding higher education clients, whether public or private, please list:

· all that the firm currently represents

· all that the firm has worked with in the past five years

· all University System of Maryland-based institutions with which the firm has worked in the past 10 years.

All cited references must be able to confirm, without reservation, the contractor's ability to perform as mandated in this solicitation.  The contractor must use these references to support its proposal's viability.

The University reserves the right to take any or all of the following actions: to reject a proposal based on an unsatisfactory reference, to contact any person or persons associated with the referenced site, to request additional references or contact any known organization using the services supplied by the contractor or the contractor's subcontractors, to contact independent consulting firms for additional information about the contractor or the contractor's subcontractors, and to have members of the Evaluation Committee visit any or all of the reference sites for demonstrations.

5) QUESTION:         Based on the general requirements and proposal sections outlined in Section 4 of the RFP, which section of our response should contain the Work Plan as described in Section 2.7 of the RFP?  Should it be submitted in section 4.3.4 (Responses to RFP Specifications) or 4.3.7 (Samples) since the RFP states that samples should accompany the work plan?

ANSWER:

The Work Plan may be included in Section 4.3.4., or in any section of the Technical Proposal relevant to the Work Plan.  Please label the work plan clearly.

6) QUESTION:
The RFP identifies specific audience segments including Veterans/Military and Hispanics – are there other identified target audiences that UB seeks to market to?
ANSWER:
Freshman audience: typically coming from visits to Baltimore City and County schools as well as some other lead gen/search sites (Cappex, Unigo, Schoold, Collegeboard and Hobson’s).  We would like to continue to penetrate this market and expand reach/conversion from high schools from other counties (Howard, Harford, Anne Arundel and Prince George’s).

Transfer audience: leads coming from visits to top feeder community colleges as well as events on campus. Top feeders are BCCC, CCBC, AACC, Harford, Howard and Montgomery (for Shady Grove).  We would like to develop a more robust digital marketing strategy for these feeders as well as for community colleges outside of our more immediate vicinity (Prince George’s, Carroll and Frederick). 

7) QUESTION:
Specific to Hispanic outreach, what Spanish-language and/or Hispanic/Latino market outreach does UB currently implement? Is there language capacity within the current in-house marketing team, or would UB look to the agency to implement any in-language communications?
ANSWER:
We currently have very limited outreach to this audience, but we’d like to expand our efforts in this area. We have one member of the admission staff who can assist with Spanish-language communications, but that is the extent of our available resources, so we may require additional help for a more robust effort.

8) QUESTION:
Are there resources or partnerships dedicated to Military/Veterans outreach as part of the marketing/enrollment function? In addition to the Veterans Center on campus and a link with the Yellow Ribbon Program, does UB have other links or partnerships with Military and Veterans organizations?
ANSWER:
We have one admission counselor who specializes in working with military and veteran students, and we also have two military student groups with more than 100 members. We’ve been named to Victory Media’s roster of “Military-Friendly Schools,” meaning we’re among the top 20 percent of schools nationwide in delivering an outstanding experience to military students. Our students can benefit from an ROTC partnership with The Johns Hopkins University, which enables students to have 100 percent of their tuition paid for and to be commissioned as U.S. Army officers upon graduation. Finally, UB complies with the Veterans Access, Choice and Accountability Act of 2014, ensuring in-state tuition to veterans and qualified family members.

9) QUESTION:
How actively will UB recruit from high schools, as part of the overall marketing/recruitment effort?  If high schools are targeted, does UB distinguish between those that are more vocational in their focus, vs. those that are college-prep high schools?
ANSWER:
UB currently has a CRM campaign for high school juniors and seniors. Our admission staff also visits target high schools. We do not have separate marketing strategies for different categories of high schools.

10) QUESTION:
What (if any) Student Relationship Management (SRM) system does the University employ for marketing purposes? Are there plans to keep or change that system?
ANSWER:
Our division uses SalesForce and Target X for our CRM platform, and there are no immediate plans to change this.

11) QUESTION:
Can the University of Baltimore clarify expectations for the web portion of the project? 
ANSWER:
Our current web priorities include, but are not limited to: (1) SEO support in the form of regular monitoring, reporting and suggesting tactics for enhanced performance, and (2) front-end support for the maintenance of existing web pages and the creation of new landing pages.

12) QUESTION:
Once a comprehensive plan has been put in place, will the www.ubalt.edu website be redesigned in addition to moving to a new content management system?
ANSWER:

 A redesign of ubalt.edu is not currently a priority but may be desirable in 1-1.5 years. Replacement of the web content management system is not an immediate objective, but will be considered in conjunction with a site redesign should the latter become a priority.

13) QUESTION:
Has the University of Baltimore determined which content management system to use for the website in the future (OU or other)? Is the University of Baltimore open to open source?
ANSWER:

Although this is not a current priority, any discussion of a replacement for the content management system will begin with an internal assessment of the institution’s needs and will take into consideration any constraints related to budget, hosting environment and internal support capabilities.

14) QUESTION:
How many employees at the University of Baltimore will be engaged in creating and maintaining content for the website in the future?
ANSWER:
 We have a decentralized content management plan in place, meaning that the Office of Marketing and Creative Services provides guidance, guidelines and training to various web content managers in each main division and college. The Office of Marketing and Creative Services is responsible for managing the main UB home page and selected other primary pages on the main site, but the content of the other sites—one for each of the four colleges/schools and the library—is maintained by those units themselves.

15) QUESTION:
Is website content development (copywriting, photography, videography) included in the scope of the project?
ANSWER:
Copywriting may be included on an as-needed basis (if an area or task is outside our realm of expertise or capabilities). We typically work with freelance photographers, and our videos are created both externally and in house depending on the extent of what is needed.

16) QUESTION:
Is there a preferred use of any metrics or tracking tools for marketing, advertising, or digital and social media campaigns? If so, is this done by a third party or in-house?
ANSWER:
We currently use Sprout Social, Facebook Insights, Twitter Analytics and Google Analytics for tracking (in house). We’re working on improving the use of SalesForce/TargetX for tracking purposes. We would like to greatly enhance our tracking capabilities and would like the chosen contractor to make recommendations on the best options.

17) QUESTION:
Amendment One states that website redesign will come at a later phase, in at least a year. Does the successful bidder have to stick to this timeline?
ANSWER:
We would not like to pursue a website redesign any earlier, as the immediate focus needs to be on executing a strategic marketing plan that focuses on advertising. Beyond that, the time frame may be somewhat flexible depending on priorities at the time.

18) QUESTION:
Can you share particular campaigns that were executed on behalf of the university that were considered a huge success? Where can those advertisements, campaigns, marketing collateral, etc. be found?
ANSWER:
We have run various sustained campaigns in the past, but none of them have been considered “huge successes” because we haven’t effectively measured. We don’t maintain public access to previous campaigns.

19) QUESTION:
Are the media buying channels listed in the solicitation the preferred ones of use? If not, are you open to outdoor, cinema, mobile, etc.?
ANSWER:
We would like to consider continued use of the channels that have proven to be the most successful in the past, but we’re also open to recommendations of new channels.

20) QUESTION:
We see that the university utilizes most of the social media sites. Are there any that you are particularly more interested in? Which do you use the most or find have been the most successful?
ANSWER:
We use Facebook, Instagram and Twitter most often, and these same platforms have garnered the best audience engagement. We’d like to grow and maximize our presence on LinkedIn and Snapchat.

21) QUESTION:
Given your recent breakdown of where media buy dollars are allocated (i.e. 40% broadcast/cable TV, 30% radio, 20% digital, etc.)? Do you want it to continue this way?
ANSWER:
We can comment generally about what we have been executing this year: roughly 20% in labor, 27% in outdoor/event marketing, 12% in radio/local TV, 3% in direct mail/print and 38% digital marketing (banners, search, paid social media, SEO, email, etc.). The existing breakdown does not need to be maintained; we welcome the vendor’s recommendations for a plan that best supports our recruitment, retention and awareness goals.

22) QUESTION:
Has the university typically advertised on cable TV network stations? If so, how often? Has the university advertised on Spotify, Pandora or used mobile advertising of any kind on past campaigns?
ANSWER:
We advertised on Comcast several years ago and will be doing so again in June. We have advertised on Pandora and I Heart Radio stations, and we have run digital banner ads that have appeared on mobile sites.

23) QUESTION:
Who will coordinate talent acquisition for video productions? (Students, Faculty, Alumni being used, etc.) Will the university be responsible for finding talent or the contractor?
ANSWER:
University staff will work with the contractor to identify and coordinate with talent as appropriate. 

24) QUESTION:
Is there any recent stock video footage and photographs that the University can provide to the successful bidder for possible use in video production and collateral pieces?
ANSWER:
Yes; we have a few high-quality professional videos that can be repurposed as well as commercial footage and video footage taken by our staff and more. We’re looking to add more videos and maximize them by formatting in various lengths for use across multiple platforms.

25) QUESTION:
Would you be able to send us a copy of the Self Study and Appendix that appears right above institutional profile on this page? 

http://www.ubalt.edu/institutional_effectiveness/middle-states.cfm
ANSWER:

There are not publicly available documents.  However there is a summary of the key recommendations on the web page at: http://www.ubalt.edu/institutional_effectiveness/middle-states.cfm
Go to the accordion “Documents for Current ReAccreditation Process” and click on MSCHE Town Hall September 29, 2016—there is a summary of some of the key recommendations that were included in the Self Study report.
END OF AMENDMENT THREE
ALL OTHER SPECIFICATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN THE SAME.

ALL OFFERORS MUST ACKNOWLEDGE THE RECEIPT OF ALL AMENDMENTS ISSUED.

1
2
____________________________________

Version 5 February 4, 2002


